

for periods of time not exceeding three hours per day, programs designed to help the children to develop intellectual skills, and motor skills, and to extend their interest and understanding of the world about them.

Sec. 2. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act, being deemed of immediate importance, takes effect upon enactment.

Approved April 26, 2001

CHAPTER 89

DRAINAGE OR LEVEE DISTRICT ELECTION DISTRICTS — SIZE

H.F. 581

AN ACT relating to the size of drainage or levee districts having election districts.

Be It Enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Iowa:

Section 1. Section 468.504, Code 2001, is amended to read as follows:
468.504 ELECTION DISTRICTS.

When a petition has been filed for the election of trustees to manage a district containing ~~three~~ twenty thousand acres or more, the board, or, if the district extends into more than one county, the boards of ~~such the~~ counties by joint action, shall, before the election, divide the district into three election districts for the purpose of securing a proper distribution of trustees in ~~such the~~ district, and ~~such the~~ division shall be so made that each election district will have substantially equal voting power and acreage, as nearly as may be. After ~~such the~~ division is made there shall be elected one trustee for each of ~~said the~~ election districts, but at ~~such the~~ election all the qualified voters for the entire district shall be entitled to vote for each trustee. The division here provided for shall be for the purposes only of a proper distribution of trustees in the district and shall not otherwise affect ~~said the~~ district or its management and control.

Approved April 26, 2001

CHAPTER 90

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION RELEASE AND USE OF PERSONAL INFORMATION

H.F. 647

AN ACT relating to the release and use of certain personal information by the state department of transportation.

Be It Enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Iowa:

Section 1. Section 321.11, subsections 2 and 4, Code 2001, are amended to read as follows:
2. Notwithstanding subsection 1, personal information shall not be disclosed to a re-

questor, except as provided in ~~Pub. L. No. 106-69, § 350(b) or~~ 18 U.S.C. § 2721, unless the person whose personal information is requested has provided express written consent allowing disclosure of the person's personal information. As used in this section, "personal information" means information that identifies a person, including a person's photograph, social security number, driver's license number, name, address, telephone number, and medical or disability information, but does not include information on vehicular accidents, driving violations, and driver's status or a person's zip code.

4. The department shall not ~~sell~~ release personal information ~~which that~~ is in the form of a person's photograph or digital image or a digital reproduction of a person's photograph, to a person other than an officer or employee of a law enforcement agency, an employee of a federal or state agency or political subdivision in the performance of the employee's official duties, a contract employee of the department of inspections and appeals in the conduct of an investigation, or a licensed private investigation agency or a licensed security service or a licensed employee of either, regardless of whether a person has provided express written consent to disclosure of the information. ~~This subsection does not prohibit the~~ The department ~~from collecting~~ may collect reasonable fees for copies of records or other services provided pursuant to this section or section 22.3, 321.10, or 622.46.

Sec. 2. Section 321.189, subsection 2, paragraph c, Code 2001, is amended to read as follows:

c. The department shall ~~advise an applicant that the~~ assign an applicant for a driver's license ~~may request a~~ distinguishing driver's license number other than ~~a~~ the applicant's social security number, ~~as the driver's license number~~ unless the applicant requests that the applicant's social security number be so assigned.

Approved April 26, 2001

CHAPTER 91

PURPLE LOOSESTRIFE — BAN ON IMPORT, SALE, OR DISTRIBUTION

S.F. 84

AN ACT prohibiting the sale or distribution of purple loosestrife.

Be It Enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Iowa:

Section 1. Section 317.25, Code 2001, is amended to read as follows:

317.25 TEASEL, MULTIFLORA ROSE, AND PURPLE LOOSESTRIFE PROHIBITED — EXCEPTIONS.

A person shall not import, sell, offer for sale, or distribute teasel (*Dipsacus*) biennial, the multiflora rose (*rosa multiflora*), purple loosestrife (*lythrum salicaria*), purple loosestrife (*lythrum virgatum*), or seeds of them in any form in this state. However, this section does not prohibit the sale, offer for sale, or distribution of the multiflora rose (*rosa multiflora*) used for understock for either cultivated roses or ornamental shrubs in gardens. ~~This section also does not prohibit the sale, offer for sale, or distribution of varieties of the purple loosestrife (*lythrum virgatum*) when used for ornamental gardens, and which are sterile or nonaggressive according to a list published by the state weed commissioner pursuant to chapter 17A. A person engaged in the business of selling purple loosestrife shall keep accurate records, as specified by the department of agriculture and land stewardship, of each~~